
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monday, 10 March 2014 
2.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Syndicate Room D, 
Cardiff City Hall, 
Cathays Park, 
Cardiff CF10 3ND 
 
 



 

 

 

 
Fire Services Management Committee 
10 March 2014 

 

There will be a meeting of the Fire Services Management Committee at 2.00 pm on Monday, 10 
March 2014. Syndicate Room D, Cardiff City Hall, Cathays Park, Cardiff CF10 3ND. 
 

A sandwich lunch will be available prior to the meeting at 2.00pm 
 

Attendance Sheet: 
Please ensure that you sign the attendance register, which will be available in the meeting room.  It 
is the only record of your presence at the meeting. 
 

Political Group meetings: 
The group meetings will take place from 1.00pm -2.00pm.  
 
Syndicate Room A:  Liberal Democrats 
Syndicate Room B:  Labour 
Syndicate Room C:  Conservative 
Syndicate Room J:   Independent 
 
Fire Conference Political Group meetings: 
 
Following the FSMC meeting, all political group meetings prior to the Fire Conference will be held on 
Monday 10 March from 5.00pm in the following rooms: 
 
Ferrier Hall: Conservative 
Syndicate Room D: Labour 
Syndicate Room A: Liberal Democrats 
Syndicate Room B: Independent 
 
Dinner: 
 
A restaurant has been booked for FSMC members for dinner from 7.30pm following the FSMC and 
political group meetings, this is: 
 
Bayside Brasserie 
Unit Upper 14, Mermaid Quay, Cardiff Bay, CF10 5BZ 
 
http://www.baysidebrasserie.com/index.htm 
 
 
Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Labour:  Aicha Less:     020 7664 3263  email: aicha.less@local.gov.uk 
Conservative: Luke Taylor:    020 7664 3264  email: luke.taylor@local.gov.uk  
Liberal Democrat: Group Office:  020 7664 3235  email: libdem@local.gov.uk 
Independent:             Group Office:  020 7664 3224  email: Vanessa.Chagas@local.gov.uk      
 

Location:  
A map showing the location of Cardiff City Hall is printed on the back cover.   
 



 

 

 
LGA Contact:  
Daniel Kalley (Tel: 0207 664 3005, email: daniel.kalley@local.gov.uk)   
 
Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of up to £6.31 per hour is 
available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly people or people with disabilities) 
incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 

The twitter hashtag for this meeting is #lgasafercomms 
 



 

 

 
 
 

Fire Services Management Committee 
 

Fire Services Management Committee - Membership 2013/14 

Councillor Authority 

  

Conservative (6)  

Kay Hammond [Chairman] Surrey CC  

David Topping Cheshire FA 

Maurice Heaster OBE London FEPA 

Simon Spencer Derbyshire FA 

John Bell Greater Manchester FRA 

Mark Healey Devon & Somerset FRS 

  

Substitutes:  

James Cleverly London FEPA 

Jean Rigby Lancashire FA 

Rebecca Knox Dorset FA 

  

Labour (5)  

John Joyce [Vice Chair] Cheshire FA 

Darrell Pulk  Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham FA 

Navin Shah  London FEPA 

Julie Young  Essex FA 

John Edwards West Midlands FRA 

  

Substitutes:  

Les Byrom CBE Merseyside FRA 

Thomas Wright Tyne and Wear FRA 

  

Liberal Democrat (2)  

Jeremy Hilton [Deputy Chair] Gloucestershire CC 

Roger Price  Hampshire FA 

  

Substitutes:  

TBC  

  

Independent (1)  

Phil Howson [Deputy Chair] East Sussex FA 

  

Substitutes:  

TBC  

  

  



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
LGA Fire Service Management Committee  
 
Attendance 2013-2014 
 
 

Councillors 19.09.13 15.11.13 24.01.14    

Conservative Group       

Kay Hammond Yes Yes Yes    

David Topping Yes Yes Yes    

Maurice Heaster OBE Yes Yes Yes    

Simon Spencer Yes Yes No    

John Bell Yes Yes Yes    

Mark Healey No Yes Yes    

       

Labour Group       

John Joyce Yes Yes No    

Darrell Pulk Yes Yes Yes    

Navin Shah No No No    

Julie Young Yes Yes Yes    

John Edwards Yes Yes Yes    

       

Lib Dem Group       

Jeremy Hilton Yes Yes Yes    

Roger Price Yes Yes Yes    

       

Independent       

Phil Howson Yes Yes Yes    

       

Substitutes       

Rebecca Knox Yes      

Thomas Wright Yes Yes Yes    

Les Byrom Yes Yes Yes    

Mehboob Khan Yes      

James Cleverly   Yes    

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
Agenda 
 

Fire Services Management Committee 
 
Monday 10 March 2014 
 
2.00 pm 
 
Syndicate Room D, Cardiff City Hall, Cathays Park, Cardiff CF10 3ND 
 

 
 

 Item Page Time 
 

1.  Chairman's report 
 

1 - 2  

2.  Flooding 
 

3 - 10  

3.  Review of property conditions in the private rented 
sector 
 
Mark Cashin, Deputy Chief Fire Officer, Cheshire Fire 
and Rescue Service will present this item. 
 

11 - 14  

4.  Pensions update 
 

15 - 22  

5.  Industrial Relations 
 

23 - 24  

6.  LGA Annual Fire Conference and Exhibition 2014 
and 2015 
 

25 - 28  

7.  Update Paper 
 

29 - 32  

8.  Notes from the Previous meeting 
 

33 - 39  

 
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Friday, 30 May 2014, 11.00 am, Westminster Suite 

(Room 8.1), 8th Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, 
SW1P 3HZ 

 



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

Chairman’s report 

 
Purpose of report  

 

For noting. 

 

Summary 

 

This paper summarises the meetings and events that the Fire Services Management 

Committee Chairman has attended since the Committee’s last meeting.   

 

  

 

Recommendation 

 

Members are asked to note the content of this report.  

 

Action 

 

Officers will take action as directed by members. 

 

 

 

Contact officer:   Helen Murray  

Position: Head of Programmes  

Phone no: 020 7664 3266 

E-mail: Helen.murray@local.gov.uk  

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

 
Chairman’s report 
 
1. This paper provides information on the meetings and engagements that the Chairman of 

the Fire Services Management Committee has attended on behalf of member fire and 
rescue authorities. 

 

2. On 29 January I spoke to the senior officers in the current cohort on the Executive 
Leadership Programme, setting out the role of the LGA, some of the challenges facing 
the sector and how we can work together so that these can be addressed. 

 

3. On 30 January I attended the Fire Service College Management Board, to discuss a 
number of issues, including the emergency services academy, the development of a 
business strategy and received an update from the Customer Advisory Board. 

 
4. I led the latest series of the Fire Leadership Academies which took place on 12-13 

February and set out the leadership challenges and opportunities facing the sector. I 
presented the importance of member/officer relations and how to create a more open 
and transparent culture of leadership. The Leadership Academy was attended by a 
range of councillors with responsibility for fire and rescue services, drawn from county, 
metropolitan and combined authorities.   

 
5. On 26 February I made the closing address at a Future Fire and Rescue Services 

Event, organised by Policy Knowledge and attended by delegates from the Fire Service, 
Ambulance Service, British Red Cross and also the Fire Brigades Union (FBU). The 
event looked in-depth at a number of key issues following Sir Ken Knight’s review in 
2013. I addressed members of the Fire and Rescue Service Community on a number of 
key issues including, the need for services to be innovative, plugging the financial gap 
and the importance of education in fire prevention to make longer term savings. 

 
6. I attended the LGA Annual Parliamentary Reception on the evening of 26 February, 

which was hosted by LGA Vice-President Steve Reed MP and saw councillors from 
across the country join MP’s and Peers to discuss current and future challenges of 
public service delivery. A number of Communities and Local Government Ministers 
attended the reception including Eric Pickles, Secretary of State Communities and Local 
Government and Brandon Lewis, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State Communities 
and Local Government.  

 

7. I am continuing my visits to FRAs round the country and have scheduled in visits to 
Warwickshire and Lincolnshire in April/May. 

 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 2



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

Flooding  

Purpose  
 
For discussion and direction. 
 
Summary 
 

With the heaviest rainfall in 250 years across much of England and Wales since January, 

following coastal surges in December, fire and rescue authorities have been at the forefront 

of activity to ensure communities are resilient and protected as far as possible. 

 
 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to note the extensive work undertaken by the fire and rescue service in 
the recent extreme weather events and to discuss the issues raised in this report, 
particularly around a statutory duty.  
 
Action 
 
Officers will take actions as directed. 
 

 
 
 

Contact officer:  Eamon Lally 

Position: Senior Adviser 

Phone no: 020 7664 3132/07799768570 

Email: eamon.lally@local.gov.uk 

 
  

Agenda Item 2

Page 3



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

Item 2 

 

     

 

Flooding  
 
Background 
 
1. The coastal surge on 5 and 6 December and the heavy rain experienced since late 

December and continuing into February have together led many areas of the country to 
experience severe flooding. Following the heavy rain, groundwater flooding has also 
been experienced in a number of areas and this will remain a concern over the next 
couple of months. 
 

2. It is estimated that around 4,500 properties were flooded in the period from early 
December to early January and an additional 3000 properties were flooded since late 
January. Many more households and businesses have been indirectly affected. 

 
3. Most affected areas are now transitioning from response to recovery. This brings its own 

issues, and councils, in partnership with other local agencies, have been ensuring that 
debris and waste is safely removed, that public health messages are getting to 
communities and that households and businesses are aware of the financial support that 
is available to those who have been flooded. 

  
Fire and rescue service response 

 
4. Fire and Rescue Services have been at the forefront of the response. Over 1,000 

firefighters have been in force across the country during the recent flooding events. 
Crews have been drafted in from a number of services to support the flood response in 
Devon and Somerset and also in the Thames Valley.  
 

5. Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service received 218 calls, 60 of which were flooding 
related between 4 and 12 January. Firefighters have put themselves forward to work 
extra shifts. The FRS rescued 11 people whose cars had become stranded in water – 
including one with children in. The service also helped to evacuate about 20 residents 
from properties in Bablockhythe, near Cumnor. 
  

6. A team from Buckinghamshire Fire & Rescue has been sent to help victims of flooding 
in Somerset. The team have been on a 48-hour rolling rota to help the flood relief 
operation, using one of the force’s Unimogs, a four-wheel drive vehicle, to drive through 
rising water. 
 

7. Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service, with national mutual aid arrangements, has 
been providing High Volume Pumping capability to support the Environment Agency 
pumping operation on the Somerset Levels. Assets in use have included up to Nine High 
Volume Pumps (HVPs) which can pump up to 1.26 million litres of water per hour; two 
Fire Service Unimog vehicles in use at Muchelney to provide support to the local 
community; community support boats; and an incident Response Unit. The Service is 
continuing to assist local residents in Muchelney with the provision of transportation 
through the flood water each day. 

 
8. Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service  has been working closely with all other 

organisations involved in flood planning, coordination and response work, including 

Agenda Item 2

Page 4



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

Item 2 

 

     

police, ambulance, military and local authorities. 150 firefighters, including specialist 
water and rescue teams, have been working in the Wraysbury/Datchet/Poyle areas. 
Crews carried out 107 rescues/evacuations between 10 and 12 February. The Service 
has been ferrying supplies and medicines to those cut off by water. Crews have worked 
with Network Rail and the Army to protect several areas of railway critical infrastructure 
and prevention staff are providing safety advice and information from RBFRS outreach 
vehicles. 
 

9. Surrey Fire and Rescue Service, together with Surrey Police, the Environment Agency, 
the military and local borough councils have been working to respond to flooding relating 
to nine severe warnings in place from the Berkshire border to Walton-on-Thames. Crews 
have rescued more than 1,100 people from homes near the Thames. The Service has 
also been operating a number of High Volume Pumping (HVP) units in the Lower 
Thames area. 

 
10. London Fire Brigade has sent help and resources to assist other UK fire and rescue 

services. The Brigade has sent three fire engines, three fire rescue units and a Command 
Unit to Berkshire where has helped to carry out water rescues in flood stricken areas. It 
has also sent specialist senior officers to assist Oxfordshire and Surrey fire and rescues 
services who are advising on flood rescues and moving water. Firefighters have been 
attending the water treatment works in Kenley, Croydon which has been under threat of 
flooding, using three high volume pumps capable of removing 24,000 litres of water a 
minute away from the affected waterworks. The facility supplies water to 47,000 
properties in the area.  

 
11. Hampshire Fire and rescue attended 120 incidents in a 24 hour period as a result of the 

floods. In Milford on Sea, 32 people were rescued from a café that has been caught in 
the coastal surge. A High Volume Pump was deployed at Lymington quay to alleviate 
tidal flooding pressures. In a number of areas around the county, the Service helped in 
the deployment of sandbags and in clearing sluices. The Service also provided 
community reassurance in Romsey and Southampton. 

 
12. A letter from Cllr Kay Hammond to Peter Holland CBE, the Chief Fire and Rescue 

Adviser on the fire and rescue service response is attached at Appendix A. 
 

Financial Support for fire and rescue authorities under the Bellwin scheme 
 
13. The Bellwin scheme provides emergency financial assistance to local authorities 

including fire and rescue authorities. Such assistance is usually provided in response to 
an emergency caused by the weather, but relief may also be available in other 
circumstances. In recent years, the scheme has been activated in respect of the 
explosion at the Buncefield fuel depot, extensive flooding in Yorkshire, the Midlands, 
Cumbria and the North West, and for costs associated with the riots in the summer of 
2011.  
 

14. Bellwin funding is designed to recompense authorities for the costs of emergency 
measures undertaken to safeguard life or property, or to prevent further suffering and 
inconvenience locally, during exceptional circumstances. There are strict rules on the 
types of expenditure that are eligible for reimbursement.  

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

Item 2 

 

     

15. In response to the recent flooding events the government opened the Bellwin Scheme 
and has also changed the rules that apply to applications in a way that is beneficial to fire 
and rescue services. The key changes that affect fire and rescue services are: 

 
15.1. paying Bellwin Grant at 100% above threshold instead of the normal, default 

85%; 
 

15.2. allowing upper tier authorities with responsibility for fire to claim on a comparable 
basis to standalone fire authorities; 
 

15.3. reducing Bellwin thresholds for all county councils and unitary authorities; and  
 

15.4. extending the eligible spending period until the end of late May 2014. 
 
The role of fire and rescue services in flooding response 

 
16. The Pitt Review, produced following the 2007 floods, sought to clarify the responsibilities 

in the response to flooding.  Some in the sector consider that there still remains some 
ambiguity about which agency has responsibility for the co-ordination of flood response 
across the country.  
 

17. Flood response plans are currently the responsibility of Local Resilience Forums (LRF) 
and it is currently for those bodies to determine which agency should act as the lead in 
flood coordination, depending on local circumstances.  The LGA has supported this 
position. Its reasoning has been that these are matters that should be for local 
determination and should not be subject to national guidance of legislation. 

 
18. CFOA has taken the view that LRF Chairs should be advised that the default expectation 

is that the local Fire and Rescue Services will be the lead authority for the co-ordination 
of the rescue phase of the emergency response to flooding incidents. It argues that in 
practice the fire and rescue service is the lead agency for the co-ordination of rescue 
operations during the emergency phase (boats, pumping, command and associated 
advisors) of inland flood response activity.  For example, the Fire and Rescue Service 
National Co-ordination Centre (FRSNCC) now acts as the repository for asset registration 
and mobilisation of emergency responders to inland flooding incidents 
 

19. The experience of the recent flooding should now inform this debate further. The flooding 
response by local agencies including fire and rescue services and the partnership 
working that has taken place locally has been broadly seen as successful and this has 
been acknowledged by Ministers.  

 
20. Guidance to LRFs should only be amended if there is a compelling case that flood 

response would be improved by fire and rescue services being designated as the lead 
authority for the co-ordination of response. Before going down this route a fuller 
understanding of the response in the recent extreme weather events is needed and this 
should also be informed by the outcomes of the review being undertaken by Oliver Letwin 
MP.     

 
21. The Pitt Review (2007) also recommended that the fire and rescue service’s role in fire 

response should be fully funded. Fire and rescue do not receive specific funding for flood 
response. However fire and rescue services respond both as a local emergency service 

Agenda Item 2

Page 6



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

Item 2 

 

     

and within the national resilience framework. The Government has not sought to make 
flood response a statutory responsibility for fire and rescue. If it were to do so, this would 
constitute a new burden and would need to be fully funded. 

 
22. If flooding events, like those seen in recent months become a more common feature of 

the weather systems in England. It will be important to review the national resilience 
framework in which fire and rescue services operate together with the funding 
mechanisms to ensure that the necessary support that the Sector provides during 
extreme weather events remains fit for purpose. 

 
23. The Fire Conference has a plenary session on national resilience and a workshop on 

flood response and water rescue. Both provide an opportunity for the role of the fire 
sector in extreme weather events to be discussed in more detail.    

 
Next steps 

24. Officers will continue to monitor the ongoing reviews of the recent flooding response and 
will update FSMC on the publication of the Letwin Review findings.  

Agenda Item 2

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
Peter Holland 
Chief Fire and Rescue Adviser 
Department for Communities and Local Government 
Zone 3/A1 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 
 
 
18 February 2014 
 
 
Dear Peter, 
 
Flooding 
 
The Fire Commission met on Friday last week and we discussed the fire and 
rescue service’s response to the recent flooding across the country.  I am sure 
you join with us all in feeling great pride at the tremendous efforts of the service, 
and their partners, to ensure people are kept safe in extremely difficult 
circumstances.  Over a prolonged period, firefighters have shown great resilience 
and strength in both their immediate response and of course will be invaluable as 
the recovery operation gets underway.   
 
We noted your statement that 70 per cent of the entire fire and rescue service is 
now deployed to help tackle the floods, in the largest deployment of personnel 
since the Second World War.  This is a truly unprecedented effort and we are 
very grateful that you are able to continue to highlight the impressive work the 
service is carrying out. 
 
We will be discussing this issue further at the Fire Services Management 
Committee taking place in Cardiff before the Annual LGA Fire Conference. You 
would be very welcome to join us for the discussion. We also have a workshop 
taking place at the Fire Conference on Water Rescue & Flooding, showcasing 
the work of the West Midlands Regional Approach and Kent FRS.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Cllr Kay Hammond 
Chairman, Local Government Association Fire Services Management Committee 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

 
 
 
Review of property conditions in the private rented sector 
 
 
Purpose of report 

 

For discussion and direction. 

 

 

Summary 

 

This paper will outline to members the background and progress of the campaign to 

introduce a requirement on landlords to install smoke alarms in private rented properties and 

highlight the publication of a review of private rented properties by the Department for 

Communities and Local Government which is seeking views on the introduction of such a 

requirement. 

 

  

 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

Members are asked to note the contents of the paper and to take a decision on submitting a 

response into the review supporting the introduction of a requirement on landlords to install 

smoke alarms in private rented residential properties. 

 

Action 

 

Officers to take action as directed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:   Helen Murray 

Position: Head of Programmes 

Phone no: 0207 664 3266 

E-mail: helen.murray@local.gov.uk  

Agenda Item 3

Page 11



 
 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

Review of property conditions in the private rented sector 

Background 

 

1. Currently landlords are not required by law to install and maintain smoke alarms in their 
properties, with the exception of landlords of Homes of Multiple Occupation (HMOs). 
Fire and Rescue Services are clear that working smoke alarms are a life-saving piece 
of equipment, as properties without a smoke alarm are four times more likely to die in a 
house fire1. 
 

2. Extensive prevention work undertaken across the country has seen smoke alarm 
ownership rise to 88% overall2. Despite this, those in the 12% of properties that do not 
own a smoke alarm account for 38% of deaths from fire. Between 2006/07 and 
2011/12 across Great Britain there were 658 fire deaths where a smoke alarm was 
absent3. 
 

3. The economic cost of these fire deaths has been calculated at £2.67 billion. Yet when a 
10-year battery smoke alarm retails for around £15.00, the cost of installing smoke 
alarms in the estimated 690,322 properties in England and Wales currently without one 
would be between £11m and £13.7m. Over the life of a smoke alarm this equates to 
between £1.59 and £1.99 per year. 
 

4. It is for these reasons that the Chief Fire Officers’ Association (CFOA) is campaigning 
to make it a requirement for all landlords to install smoke alarm in their properties as 
part of its Home Safety Strategy 2013-16. The strategy can be downloaded from the 
CFOA website: http://www.cfoa.org.uk/download/40512 
  

5. Regulation has often led to a step change in the numbers of fire fatalities as well as 
smoke alarm ownership, as seen with the Furniture and Furnishing Regulations 1998, 
amendments to Building Regulations and the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004. The 
introduction of a requirement on landlords to install and maintain smoke alarms in 
private rented properties can provide the next legislative change to continue driving 
down deaths from fire. 
 

6. During the passage of the Energy Bill (now Energy Act 2013) in November 2013, an 
amendment was tabled to the Bill during its third reading in the House Lords which 
provided the Secretary of State with the power to make a regulation to compel 
landlords of rented residential properties to install and maintain smoke alarms and/or 
carbon monoxide detectors in their properties. 
 

                                           

1 DCLG ‘Fire Kills’ 

2 2011 English Housing Survey 

3 Fire Statistics Great Britain, 2011 to 2012 

Agenda Item 3

Page 12



 
 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

7. Speaking in the debate, the Communities and Local Government (CLG) Minister 
Baroness Stowell stated while the Secretary of State will be afforded the power to 
introduce the regulation, the Government intended to firstly undertake a review of the 
private rented sector to determine if bringing forward the requirement was necessary. 

Review of property conditions 

8. CLG launched a short review of property conditions in the private rented sector on 12 

February. The review concludes on 28 March 2014 and seeks views on a range of 

issues including the rights and responsibilities of tenants and landlords. The review can 

be downloaded from the CLG website: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-property-conditions-in-the-

private-rented-sector 

9. Section four of the review seeks views on introducing a requirement on private sector 
to install and maintain smoke alarms in their properties. Views are also sought on a 
similar requirement in relation to carbon monoxide alarms. 
 

10. The review states that regulation would only be introduced if, as a result of feedback, a 
clear need for regulation was demonstrated.  

Campaign progress 

11. Discussion and correspondence was undertaken with key stakeholders prior to the 

launch of the review, including meetings with Members of Parliament and officials 

within CLG, to press for the mandatory installation of smoke alarms in rented properties 

and to determine the scope of the review. 

12. Following the launch of the review these individuals and others, including elected 

members, sector bodies and representative organisations, have been contacted to 

highlight the launch of the review and to encourage them to submit a response in 

support of bringing forward this regulation.  

13. The University of Manchester has been commissioned jointly by Cheshire Fire and 

Rescue Service and the Fire Protection Association to undertake a piece of research 

that will examine links between fire fatalities and tenure. Results from this research will 

be fed into the review process and it is hoped this will provide an accurate description 

of how many fire fatalities occur in rented properties in order to support the introduction 

of regulation. 

14. The research organisation YouGov have also undertaken a representative poll to 

gauge support for making the fitting of smoke alarms mandatory in private rented 

properties, which showed that 93% of respondents supported this regulation. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 13



 
 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

 

Pressing for change 

 

15. The next phase of the campaign is to generate a groundswell of support for introducing 
the regulation. This will be achieved through raising awareness of the review and 
encouraging submissions among partners and stakeholders (such as FRAs, CFOA and 
the wider fire sector) and the public through the use of traditional media and social 
media networks, for example using the #Alarm4Life hashtag on Twitter. These actions 
will ensure that it can be demonstrated to government there is a genuine case for 
change. 

Conclusion and next steps 
 

16. Members are asked to note the contents of this paper and take a decision on the 
submission of a response into the review supporting the introduction of a requirement 
on landlords to install smoke alarms in private rented properties, by the closing date of 
28 March 2014. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 14



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

 10 March 2014 

 

 

     

Pensions Update 

Purpose  
 
For discussion and direction 
 
Summary 
 

On 24 May 2012, DCLG published a Proposed Final Agreement on the scheme design for 

the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme in England to be introduced from April 2015. The employer 

contribution of the firefighters' pension scheme 2015 will be determined by the valuation of 

the scheme, which is ongoing. This report sets out the issues in relation to the valuation. 

 

On 18 December 2013, the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 

published a consultation document titled ‘Consultation on the regulations to introduce a new 

Firefighters Pension Scheme from April 2015’. The consultation is for a 12 week period and 

ends on 12 March 2014. This report contains a draft response to the regulation consultation. 

 

The introduction of the 2015 pension scheme will be accompanied by the requirement for 

new local and national governance arrangements.  

 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to note and comment on the issues raised in this paper and in particular 
to consider the recommendation not to respond to the consultation on firefighters’ pension 
regulations 2015 at this time 
 
Action 
 
Officers will take actions as directed. 
 

 
 
 

Contact officer:  Eamon Lally 

Position: Senior Adviser 

Phone no: 020 7664 3132/07799768570 

Email: eamon.lally@local.gov.uk 

 
  

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

 

Pensions Update 
 
Background 
 
1. On 24 May 2012, DCLG published a Proposed Final Agreement on the scheme design 

for the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme in England to be introduced from April 2015. The 
employers’ contribution rate in the new scheme will be determined by the 2012 Scheme 
Valuation which is ongoing and is expected to report later this year.  
 

2. The introduction of the 2015 pension scheme will be accompanied by the requirement for 
new local and national governance arrangements. 
 

3. The consultation on the regulations to introduce a new Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 
from April 2015 ends on the 12 March 2014. 

 
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme Valuation and employers contributions 
 
4. Proposed Final Agreement on the scheme design for the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme in 

England to be introduced from April 2015 implies an employer contribution rate of 13.8 
per cent. However, the actual employer contribution rate will be determined by the 
outcome of the 2012 valuation which is ongoing.    
 

5. From 2015, members will accrue benefits in one of three schemes – the FPS; the NFPS; 
or the post-2015 scheme. Therefore employer contributions from 2015 will depend upon 
the cost of accrual in each of these three schemes. The majority of members will accrue 
benefits in the post-2015 scheme, but many older members will have some form of 
protection which allows them to continue accruing benefits in the scheme they were in 
prior to 2015. DCLG intends to set employer contribution rates for the 1992 scheme, the 
2006 scheme and the 2015 scheme, and ill health charges, such that the average of 
those contributions over 2015-19 is expected to be equal to the employer contribution 
rate calculated in the 2012 valuation. 

 
6. In its Draft Directions for the 2012 valuation of the firefighters’ pension schemes HM 

Treasury has decided to use to value of the scheme liabilities at the time of the last 
valuation in 2007 as the notional level of assets at that time in the unfunded firefighters’ 
pension scheme. The notional level of assets is £13.5 billion (this figure was recently 
revised down by £300 million due to actuarial error). The level of the assets is important 
as it represents the baseline that will inform the ongoing evaluation. The impact of the 
lower level of assets at 2007 will not be known until the 2012 valuation is complete. 

 
7. Changes that have occurred between the 2007 and 2012 valuations, such as the move to 

uprating pensions based on CPI rather than RPI, the level of salary increases, changes in 
financial assumptions, the actual level of employer and employee contributions and the 
retrospective admittance of retained firefighters to the pension scheme, will all have an 
impact on whether the scheme is in notional surplus or deficit.  The key question here is 
whether past contributions were sufficient to meet current estimates of the value of 
promises already made. These changes to past service costs will have an impact on 
employer contribution rates from 2015. We can be fairly confident about the direction of 
some of these factors, but not the overall impact. The change from RPI to CPI will reduce 

Agenda Item 4

Page 16



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

the costs, as will the lower salary increases of recent years. In contrast the change in the 
financial assumptions, namely the lowering of the discount rate, will have increased the 
cost of meeting the pension promises already made. The decision to retrospectively 
admit retained firefighters to the pension scheme will also have increased the costs. 
 

8. In terms of future service costs it is important to remember that a significant proportion of 
the workforce, around one-third, will continue to accrue benefits under the 1992 scheme. 
The employer contribution cost in respect of these employees will be much higher than 
the 13.8 per cent anticipated for the 2015 scheme.  

 
9. Overall, in the medium term (over the next 5 years), fire and rescue authorities 

should not expect any decrease in pension contribution rates and might even see 
employer contribution rates rise. It will be important for fire and rescue authorities 
to reflect this in their medium term financial planning. 

 
10. The potential cost to fire and rescue authorities of the retrospective admittance of 

retained firefighters to the pension scheme, is relatively small when compared to the 
scale of some of the other changes, such as the impact of the change to the discount 
rate. However, the LGA and the fire sector are right to continue to press government to 
accept its responsibility for this cost.   

 
New local and national governance arrangements 
  
11. The government’s reforms of public sector pensions, includes requirements for more 

formal governance arrangements at both local and national level. Reforms to the 
governance and administration of public service schemes are intended to bring 
administration practices broadly in line with those applicable in the private sector. A 
considerable amount of work will be needed by fire and rescue services and pensions 
administrators before the scheme comes into effect on the 1 April 2015. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 17



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

 
 
12. The key changes include the establishment of a pensions’ regulator and local pensions 

boards. The local boards will have a key role in securing the effective administration of 
the scheme. 
 

13. Local pension boards must have an equal number of persons appointed to represent 
employees and employers on the board. There can also be other board members 
representing different interests e.g. a representative of the responsible authority/scheme 
manager as well as/or independent board members. 

 
14. The new governance arrangements will potentially see a more active role for elected 

members in the oversight of the firefighters’ pension schemes. The Government has 
stated that it will consult on governance arrangements for pension boards and scheme 
advisory boards in due course. Fire and Rescue Authorities will be the scheme managers 
for the pension schemes and will be responsible for nominations to the Local Pension 
Boards. However, elected members should begin to discuss these issues at an early 
stage as the timescales to ensure that they are in place in time for the new scheme will 
be relatively short. 

  
Consultation on the regulations to introduce a new Firefighters Pension Scheme from 
April 2015 
 
15. On 18 December 2013, the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 

published a consultation document titled ‘Consultation on the regulations to introduce a 
new Firefighters Pension Scheme from April 2015’. The consultation ends on 12 March 
2014. The overall pension scheme design is set out in appendix A and a comparison of 
the 1992, 2006 and 2015 schemes is set out in appendix B, 

Agenda Item 4

Page 18



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

16. The regulations are important, but it is difficult to assess their impact in isolation. The big 
issues for the sector are likely to relate to the forthcoming consultation on the financing 
and governance.  Some of the finance related issues will have implications for the draft 
regulations.   

17. Fire and rescue authorities have expressed concern that the consultation on finance and 
governance is not being consulted on at the same time as the consultation on the 
regulations that translate the pension scheme design into legislation. It is recommended 
that FSMC advises DCLG that given the inter connectivity between the draft 
regulations, finance and governance that it will be providing an overarching 
response once the remaining consultations are published.   

 
18. There are major administrative tasks for all FRSs in gearing up to implement the 2015 

scheme and the sector needs to be aware this is complex and will have significant 
impacts on finance and pension administrators in particular. 

 
Next steps 

19. Members are asked to note and comment on the issues raised in this paper and in 
particular to consider the recommendation not to respond to the consultation on 
firefighters’ pension regulations 2015 at this time. 

  

Agenda Item 4

Page 19



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

Appendix A 

 

Overall Firefighters’ Pension Scheme design 

 

The main elements of the scheme design were set out in the Proposed Final Agreement 
and these are the main parameters for forming the basis of the statutory consultation on 
member benefits as set out below: 

•A pension scheme based on career average revalued earnings 

•An accrual rate of 1/58.7th of pensionable earnings each year 

•There will be no cap on how much pension can be accrued 

•A revaluation rate of active members’ benefits in line with average weekly earnings 

•Pensions in payment and deferred benefits to increase in line with the Prices Index 
(currently the Consumer Prices Index) 

•Flexible retirement from the scheme’s minimum pension age of 55 built around the 
scheme’s Normal Pension Age of 60, with members being able to take their 2015 
scheme benefits as follows: 

- for all active members who are aged 57 or more at retirement, 2015 scheme benefits 
taken before Normal Pension Age will be actuarially reduced with reference to the 2015 
scheme’s Normal Pension Age, rather than the deferred pension age. 

- all other members will have their 2015 scheme benefits actuarially reduced on a cost 
neutral basis from the scheme’s deferred pension age 

•Authority initiated early retirement for members of the 2015 scheme from age 55 to be in 
accordance with the arrangements set out in Part 3, Rule 6 of the New Firefighters’ 
Pension Scheme 2006 

•Late retirement factors for members retiring from active service to be actuarially neutral 
from the Normal Pension Age 

•A deferred pension age equal to the individual’s State Pension Age 

•Optional lump sum by commutation at a rate of £12 for every £1 per annum of pension 
foregone in accordance with HMRC limits and regulations 

•Ill-health retirement benefits to be based on those contained in the New Firefighters’ 
Pension Scheme 2006 

•All other ancillary benefits to be based on those contained in the New Firefighters’ 
Pension Scheme 2006 

•Members rejoining after a period of deferment of less than 5 years can link new service 
with previous service, as if they had always been an active member 

•Members transferring between public service schemes would be treated as having 
continuous active service 

There will be transitional protection in respect of: 

•All accrued rights are protected and those past benefits will be linked to final salary when 
members leave the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2015. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 20



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

•All active members who, as of 1 April 2012, have 10 years or less to their current Normal 
Pension Age will see no change in when they can retire, nor any decrease in the amount 
of pension they receive at the current Normal Pension Age. This means members will 
remain in their existing schemes and not transfer to the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 
2015. 

•There will be a further 4 years of tapered protection for scheme members. This means 
that members who are up to 14 years from their current Normal Pension Age, as of 1 
April 2012, will have limited protection so that on average for every month of age they are 
beyond 10 years of their Normal Pension Age, they gain about 53 days of protection, 
before they transfer to the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2015. 

  

Agenda Item 4

Page 21



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

     

Appendix B: Comparison between the proposed 2015 scheme and the 1992 and 
2006 schemes 

 

Feature  FPS 1992  FPS 2006  FPS 2015  

Basis of pension  Final Salary  Final Salary  Career Average 
Revalued Earnings 
(CARE) 

 

  

Accrual rate  1/60th / 2/60ths  1/60th  1/58.7ths  

Membership cap  40 years   none  

Revaluation rate  Benefits based on final 
salary  

Benefits based on 
final salary  

Average weekly 
earnings  

Contribution rate  Tiered  
(2012: 11-13%  
2013: 11-15%)  

Tiered  
(2012: 8.5-9.7%  
2013: 8.5-11.1%)  

Tiered  
Average of 13.2% 
(Consultation 
document indicates 
average 12.6% in 
2015, 12.7% in 
2016, 12.8% in 
2017)  

Normal pension age  55  60  60 - subject to 
regular review  

Late retirement    Factors to make late 
retirement 
actuarially neutral 
(an increase) 

Deferred 
retirement age  

60  65  Linked to state 
pension age  

Lump sum option  Age related conversion 
factors  

Trade £1 of pension 
for £12 lump sum  

Trade £1 of pension 
for £12 lump sum  

Ill-health provision   Lower Tier: 1/60th 
accrued membership  
Higher Tier: basic 
plus enhancement  

As per 2006 scheme  

Indexation of 
pension in 
payment  

CPI (Retail Price Index 
for pre-2011 increases)  

CPI (Retail Price 
Index for pre 2011 
increases)  

CPI  

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 22



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee  

10 March 2014 

 

 
Industrial Relations 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To update the Fire Service Management Committee on the current dispute between the 
Fire Brigades Union and Government Ministers in England, Wales and Scotland 
 
 
Summary 
 
This paper briefly describes the position as at the date of issue of the report.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to note the issues set out in the paper.  
 
 
Action 
 
Officers to progress as directed by Members. 

 
 

 

Contact officer:   

 

 

Gill Gittins  

Position: Principal Negotiating Officer 

Phone no: 020 7187 7335 

E-mail: gill.gittins@local.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 5

Page 23



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee  

10 March 2014 

 

 

Pension Scheme Reform Dispute 

1. The purpose of this paper is to update members in relation to the dispute between 
the Fire Brigades Union (FBU) and Ministers in England, Wales and Scotland on 
the matter of pension scheme reform proposals.  

2. The report to the last meeting of the FSMC made reference to the periods of strike 
action, and action short of a strike, that had taken place together with a reminder of 
work we had undertaken with both DCLG and the FBU as well as details of the 
support provided to individual fire authorities in managing the industrial action.  

3. Since that report we are aware that discussion has continued between DCLG 
officials and representatives of the FBU. At the time of writing we understand those 
discussions are still on-going and on occasion have involved actuaries and legal 
representatives for both parties. Further industrial action has not taken place, nor 
is any currently scheduled, in order to allow time for those talks to conclude.  

4. Discussion is also continuing between the National Employers and the FBU on a 
matter that falls out of the pension scheme reform proposals and the potential 
impact on capability matters. Whilst we have broad agreement on a number of 
principles, the detail needs to be fully resolved.    

5. The FBU’s Executive Council will next meet on 27 February.   

Agenda Item 5

Page 24



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014  

 

 

     

LGA Annual Fire Conference and Exhibition 2014 and 2015 

 
Purpose of report 

 

For discussion and direction. 

 

Summary 

 

Whilst arrangements for the 2014 LGA Annual Fire Conference and Exhibition at the 

Millennium Stadium in Cardiff have now all been finalised and a verbal update will be given 

at the meeting on this year’s conference, we now need to turn our attention to the location of 

the 2015 Fire Conference and Exhibition in order to secure the best possible venue and 

rates.   

 

FSMC Members’ views are therefore sought at this early planning stage.    

 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

Members are asked to comment on the possible options for the 2015 Fire Conference as 

set out within the report. 

 

Action 

 

Officers to reflect Members’ comments in conference planning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Contact officer:   Jane Marcroft 

Position: Events Manager, LGA 

Phone no: 020 7664 3080 

E-mail: jane.marcroft@local.gov.uk  

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 25



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014  

 

 

     

LGA Annual Fire Conference and Exhibition 2014 and 2015 

Background 
 
1. Now in its 17th year, the LGA annual Fire Conference and Exhibition has attracted an 

average of 250 attendees and a range of exhibitors and sponsors in recent years.  The 
event is considered to be an important part of the annual fire industry calendar, one of 
the showcase events organised by the LGA and an important income-generator. 

 
2. In this continuing tough economic climate attendee numbers for the 2014 conference 

are holding up well although we cannot take this for granted and we must constantly 
strive to give our delegates the best possible value for money.  Members will be 
pleased to note the increased size of the exhibition in 2014. 

 
Considerations 
 
3. The FSMC has previously agreed that the following criteria must be taken into 

consideration when sourcing a venue for this annual conference: 
 

3.1 to only consider venues of a high standard that have in place a fire sprinkler 
system throughout; and 
 

3.2 to continue to hold the conference over two days (finishing with lunch on the 
second day). 

 
4. Other factors emerged during the organisation of the 2012 conference which also need 

to be taken on board when organising future conferences and these include: 
 

4.1 the need to negotiate a larger number of bedrooms at the chosen conference 
hotel; 
 

4.2 to have a larger exhibition area to accommodate increased demand from 
commercial exhibitors (over recent years the exhibition has been growing in size 
- we have three more exhibitors in 2014 than in 2013, with 18 exhibition stands 
which all sold out in good time); and 

 
4.3 to ensure that all the workshop rooms are of a sufficient size to accommodate 

delegate numbers.  
 
5. There may well be other considerations which emerge following the holding of this 

year’s conference and which will have a bearing on requirements, not least the 
departure from holding the conference in a stadium as opposed to a hotel. 

 
6. With regards to the location of the 2015, I have researched venues in Milton Keynes 

and Birmingham.   
 

 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 26



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014  

 

 

     

Further considerations 
 
7. Further to the above, it is important that officers continue to consider a series of 

proposals that aim to help drive further reductions in cost for future conferences and, at 
the same time, make these conferences more viable and attractive to delegates. 

 
8. Members are asked for any comments they may have on the proposals set out below. 
 
Options  
 
9. I have researched two venues in particular.  Both venues in the search area offer the 

overall size of conference accommodation required and come the closest to fulfilling 
the brief as set out above.   

 
9.1 In Birmingham the hotel in question is the Hilton Birmingham Metropole – whilst 

this is a very large hotel with numerous conference rooms of good size and 
almost 800 bedrooms it is not city centre and would require transfer from 
Birmingham International Station by shuttle bus for those arriving by rail.  The 
initial prices I have been quoted would require some negotiation especially the 
set-up costs for the main conference room and exhibition area(s) and the cost of 
room hire of the workshop rooms.  The other downside is that our preferred time 
of year for holding this conference (second week of March) coincides with a 
particularly busy two-week schedule of exhibitions at the NEC when there is a 
high demand on bedrooms at the Hilton and importantly at other nearby hotels.   
At the time of drafting this paper I am awaiting assurances that circa 180 
bedrooms would be made available to delegates to book. 

 
9.2 In Milton Keynes the other option is the Doubletree by Hilton Milton Keynes which 

is built into Stadiummk, home of league one football club MK Dons.  This has the 
advantage of having both hotel accommodation and conference facilities under 
one roof.    Whilst the room set-up charges are more favourable at this location 
they are still more expensive than we have been paying in recent years and 
would require some renegotiation and the hotel would not be able to 
accommodate all of our delegates. The venue is circa 2.5 miles from the centre 
of Milton Keynes, with the nearest other hotels being 2.5 - 3 miles from this 
venue.    

 
10. Both venues would give us the opportunity to further grow the exhibition and in the 

case of the Milton Keynes venue we would be able to accommodate at least an extra 
four stands.    

 
11. What has become evident however is that the overall cost of staging the event in 2015 

at either of the above locations, even allowing for some further negotiation of the 
proposed charges, would be more expensive.  In 2012 and 2013 and in particular this 
year we have benefited from some incredibly favourable day delegate rates and dinner 
charges which are proving difficult to compete with. 

 
12 I am provisionally holding the dates of 10 and 11 March 2015 at both venues. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014  

 

 

     

Financial implications 
 
13. Officers continue to drive down the costs of staging the annual Fire Conference and 

Exhibition and will use the costs secured in 2013 and 2014 as a benchmark in all future 
negotiations.   

Agenda Item 6

Page 28



 

 

  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 
 

Update paper 

 
Purpose of report  

 

For information. 

 

Summary 

 

The report outlines issues of interest to the Committee not covered under the other items on 

the agenda. 

 

 

  

 

Recommendation 

 

Members to note the update. 

 

Action 

 

Officers to progress as appropriate. 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:   Lucy Ellender 

Position: Adviser 

Phone no: 020 7664 3321 

E-mail: lucy.ellender@local.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

                

 

     

FSMC update paper 

 
Annual Fire Lecture:  High rise – not high risk 
 
1. The fourth annual Fire Lecture hosted by The Worshipful Company of Firefighters in 

partnership with ROCKWOOL, takes place on 28 May. The lecture addresses the issue 
of protection and safety associated with the risk of fire in high-rise buildings. There are 
a number of speakers including Brandon Lewis MP, the Fire Minister, Ron Dobson, 
Commissioner of London Fire Brigade and Peter Holland CBE, Chief Fire and Rescue 
Adviser. Further information can be found on the Worshipful Company of Firefighters 
website: http://www.firefighterscompany.org/PDFs/THE_FIRE_LECTURE_2014.pdf  

 
Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Programme (JESIP) 
 
2. The JESIP Programme has released its first newsletter, providing information about its 

work programme, training and publications. The publication can be viewed online on 
the JESIP website: www.jesip.org.uk/jesip-releases-first-newsletter/  

 
Operational Guidance on Breathing Apparatus 
 

3. On 14 January 2014, the Department published Operational Guidance on Breathing 

Apparatus. This guidance supports the operational competency of personnel that are required 

to wear, manage or train others in the use of breathing apparatus. The new guidance is 

available on the Government’s website: www.gov.uk/government/publications/operational-

guidance-breathing-apparatus  

 
Fire Kills  

 

4. The Government’s Fire Kills campaign has launched a new secondary national campaign to 

supplement the twice yearly clock change advertising. This new campaign aims to increase 

the frequency of smoke alarm testing, by encouraging people to test their smoke alarms on 

the ‘1st of the Month’. A new online video will be launched just before the first of every month, 

and will feature amusing and alternative ways in which smoke alarms might be tested. The 

videos aim to engage social media users and encourage sharing.  

 
Which? Smoke alarm test: Guidance for Fire and Rescue Staff to deal with inquiries 
from the public 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 30



  

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

                

 

     

5. The Chief Fire Officers Association (CFOA) will be issuing notable practice on how to 
deal with queries regarding the recent Which? Test of 15 different smoke alarms, in 
which two smoke alarms made by FireAngel, were listed as “Don’t buy”. Further 
information will be available on the notable practice section of CFOA’s website shortly. 

 
 
 
Leadership Academy 

 
6. Following another successful Leadership Academy in February the LGA will be running 

a further leadership Academy between 10 - 11 September 2014. Members will have 
the opportunity to develop their skills to ensure they are better able to address 
challenges and take advantage of opportunities in their authorities. The Leadership 
Academies also provide a chance to share ideas and network with leading members 
from other fire and rescue authorities. More information can be found on the fire section 
of the LGA’s website (www.local.gov.uk/fire-and-rescue-services) and you can book a 
place by emailing grace.collins@local.gov.uk.  

 
The Firefighters International Service of Remembrance & Wreath Laying Ceremony - 
Sunday 14th September 2014 

 
7. All Chairs and Chief Fire Officers of Fire and Rescue Authorities are invited to attend 

the Firefighters International Service of Remembrance & Wreath Laying Ceremony. 
This will be taking place at St Sepulchre-without-Newgate, in London on Sunday 14 
September 2014. Badges of Office and Decorations are to be worn. Further information 
will be posted on the Firefighters Memorial Trust website: 
http://firefightersmemorial.org.uk  

 

Arson Prevention Forum – Councillor Roger Price 

 

8. Councillor Price is the LGA’s representative on the Arson Prevention Forum, which is an 

independent cross sector forum involving organisations from the emergency services, forensic 

science and insurance. The Forum is currently developing a report looking at ways of reducing 

the number of incidents involving arson. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

Note of decisions taken and actions required   
 

Title:                                Fire Services Management Committee 

Date  and time:                Friday 24 January 2014, 11.00am 

Venue: Westminster Suite room 8.1 (8th Floor), Local Government House 

 

Attendance 

 

Position Councillor Council 

Chair 

 

Vice Chair 

Deputy Chair 

Deputy Chair 

Cllr Kay Hammond  

 

Cllr John Edwards 

Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Cllr Phil Howson 

Surrey CC 

 

West Midlands FRA 

Gloucestershire CC 

East Sussex FA 

   

Members 

 

Cllr David Topping 

Cllr Maurice Heaster OBE 

Cllr John Bell 

Cllr Mark Healey 

Cheshire FA 

London FEPA 

Greater Manchester FRA 

Devon & Somerset FRS 

 Cllr Darrell Pulk 

 

Cllr Julie Young 

Cllr Roger Price 

 

Nottinghamshire and City of 

Nottingham FA 

Essex FA 

Hampshire FA 

Substitutes Cllr James Cleverly 

Cllr Les Byrom CBE 

Cllr Thomas Wright 

 

London FEPA 

Merseyside FRA 

Tyne and Wear FRA 

Apologies Cllr Simon Spencer 

Cllr John Joyce 

Cllr Navin Shah 

 

 

Derbyshire FA 

Cheshire FA 

London FEPA 

Officers:  Helen Murray, Eamon Lally, Gill Gittins, Gary Hughes, Daniel Kalley (all LGA) 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 33



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

Item Decisions and actions Action by 

  

Cllr Hammond welcomed Members to the Committee. She 

proposed Cllr John Edwards to be the member on the skills and 

justice committee, which was agreed by the Committee. 

 

Helen Murray  

to notify Des 

Prichard 

 

1. Chairman’s Report  

 

Cllr Hammond updated the Committee on her latest meeting with 

Brandon Lewis MP; in particular she informed the Committee that 

she had pressed Brandon Lewis on the date of publication of the 

Knight Review and the importance of this being done before the 

Fire Conference in March.   

 

  

Decision 

Members noted the report. 

 

 

 

 

2. Lakanal House Working Group 

 

Val Shawcross AM, Chair of the Lakanal House Working Group 

informed the Committee that the working group was nearly 

complete.  She outlined a number of factors that contributed to the 

spread of the fire including: 

 

• refurbishments to Lakanal House which were not up to 
building standards. 

• the complex layout of the block. 

• the unique progress of the fire.  
 

The working group have focused on more wide ranging effects 
stemming from the incident, including: 
 

• how local authorities and housing associations comply with 
building regulations. 

• how refurbishments are carried out on older buildings. 

• the need for after-care for neighbours and residents of 
buildings following a fire. 

 
Gary Reason, explained that the London Fire Brigade had taken a 
number of actions in advance of an in response to the Coroner’s 
Report including: 
 

• Awareness raising with residents, particularly in high rise 
accommodation. 

• A media campaign in March 2014 aimed at residents of high 
rise accommodation and at those who managed high rise 
buildings. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 34



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

• Improvements to the website containing information on how to 
prevent fires in high rise blocks. 

• Better links between call centre staff and officers at the scene, 
ensuring information is effectively disseminated to those 
tackling the fire. 

 
Members were informed that at the group’s meeting in August a 
number of issues were discussed which included: 
 

• creating an accreditation system for risk assessors.  

• developing a system to alert local councillors of any structural 
damage which possess a threat to fire safety. 

• managing common parts of high rise buildings, for example 
ensuring front doors meet required fire safety standards. 

• cabling support should have fire resistant support. 

• ensuring all lifts are maintained and inspected on a regular 
basis. 

 
Members welcomed the presentation and raised a number of 
comments and questions to which officers responded: 
 

• The Lakanal House fire affected all floors of the building. Due 
to the extensive work that needed to be carried out, Lakanal 
House was still unoccupied. 

• The Electrical Safety Council had agreed to update all cabling 
structures on any new build properties from 2015 onwards. 
However, fire officers were pushing for new cabling to be 
installed when housing blocks were refurbished. 

• With regards to sprinklers, these would be fitted where it was 
deemed appropriate. 

 
Following the Lakanal House inquest recommendations, many 
buildings managed by Lewisham Homes are being assessed for 
the feasibility of fitting sprinklers; prioritising sheltered blocks. 
 
Cllr Hammond asked for officers to circulate a joint lessons 
learned bulletin to all authorities, so that all local fire authorities 
were aware of the issues. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Action 

A lesson learned document to be produced in time for the Fire 

conference in March. 

 

Decision 

Members noted the presentation from the Lakanal House 

Working Group. 

 

 

Gary 

Reason/Helen 

Murray 

 

 

3. Evaluation of Peer Challenge  

Agenda Item 8

Page 35



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

Gary Hughes, LGA Programme Manager and Dr James Downe, 

Cardiff University updated the Committee on the OpA and Fire 

Peer Challenge. By the end of the 2014 all Fire Authorities in 

England would have undergone a peer challenge. 

 

Dr James Downe outlined the timescales for producing the final 

report and reminded members that this was initial feedback and 

that further analysis will be undertaken. This included a workshop 

at the Fire Conference in March.  

 

The Committee was informed that the majority of Councillors 

contacted explained that the key to a successful peer challenge 

was the expertise of the member peer. It was also suggested that 

to improve the process further it would be beneficial to have wider 

representation on the team from peers outside the fire sector. 

 

Following completion of the evaluation of the OpA and Fire Peer 

Challenge the team would be considering a number of changes to 

enhance the process including the opportunity to further use 

performance data and to formalise the current arrangements so 

that additional follow-up support is available where there is 

demand. 

 

Members welcomed the presentation and raised a number of 

comments, including: 

 

• The possibility of involving peers from the business 
community offering a different perspective provided they had 
the necessary expertise. 

• Receiving positive feedback helped motivate staff and 
enabled them to feel a sense of self-worth. 

• It was important that the challenge continued to be seen as 
robust. 

• It was helpful for all authorities to have an action plan and for 
further follow up, to ensure any points raised are carried out. 

• It was noted the peer challenge was one of a suite of 
improvement support activities offered by the LGA, which also 
included mentoring support for Fire and Rescue Authority 
Chairmen. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 36



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Action 

Reform the LGA and CFOA Task and Finish Group on OpA and 

Fire Peer Challenge on completion of the final evaluation to lead 

the development of the next phase of the programme and to bring 

a short report back to FSMC on the changes. 

 

Decision 

Members noted the presentation and the recommendations going 

forward. 

 

Primary Authority 

 

Dave Curry, Deputy Chief Officer at Hampshire Fire and Rescue 

Service explained that new statutory duty will apply to all fire 

authorities from 6 April 2014. Fire Authorities had the choice of 

becoming a Primary Authority or an Enforcing Authority. Large 

companies with a footprint across a number of fire authorities 

could choose any authority to be the primary authority and adopt 

that authority’s practices and procedures. Members were 

informed that enforcement would be undertaken by any fire 

authority that covered an area in which the business traded. 

 

The CFOA had concerns with the primary authority legislation 

being applied to trade associations because it was not clear to 

what extent they could influence the action of their members. 

 

Members noted that the CFOA had undertaken work with regards 

to enforcement, which had been funded by the Better Regulation 

Executive. Dave Curry highlighted a number of areas which 

involved collaboration, including establishing a Business 

Engagement Forum and reviewing all fire safety notices used by 

FRA’s. There were particular themes that needed further funding 

from central Government in order to proceed, including 

developing a sector led appeals system and developing an 

‘earned recognition’ scheme. 

 

Members noted that a draft competency framework was going 

through consultation, which would help ensure a more consistent 

approach taken by all FRA’s. In addition, having an accreditation 

scheme would enable risk assessors to forge a career in fire risk 

assessment and be recognised by the scheme. 

 

Members raised a number of questions and comments, which 

officers responded to including: 

 

 

Gary Hughes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 37



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Fire authorities had the option to become a Primary Authority, 
however all fire authorities had to adhere to the new statutory 
duty.  

• It was possible for a fire authority in the north of England to be 
the primary authority of a company, who had an office in the 
south of England. 

• The peer challenge helped raise the standards of all fire 
inspectors to achieve greater consistency across all fire 
authorities. 

• This new duty opened up the opportunity for some fire 
authorities to specialise in different aspects of fire safety, 
possibly creating a market economy. 

 

Action 
Officers to promote Primary Authority in the next bulletin. 
 
FSMC Industrial Relations Report 
 
Gill Gittins, LGA Principal Negotiating Officer introduced the report 
and updated the Committee on the current dispute between the 
Fire Brigades Union and the Government. Members were 
informed that further talks were to take place the following week. 
Discussion also continued on the ‘principles’ being discussed by 
the FBU and the National Employers on  capability issues that 
may fall out of the pension reform proposals.  
 
Cllr Maurice Heaster explained that recent developments in 
Northern Ireland might have an impact on negotiations in 
England.  
 
Members agreed that resilience arrangements had coped well 
during the strikes.   
 
Update Report 

 

Cllr Roger Price updated the Committee on the work of the Arson 

Prevention Forum, which was an independent cross sector forum 

involving organisations from the emergency services, forensic 

science and insurance. The Forum was currently developing a 

report looking at ways of reducing the number of incidents 

involving arson. He offered to invite Cllr Lee Howell, Chair of the 

Forum to present the findings of the report at a future meeting. 

 

Cllr Howson informed the Committee that his local authority had 

passed a motion to install sprinklers in all public service buildings. 

In addition he informed members that he was happy to share a 

copy of the motion with the rest of the Committee to try and get all 

local authorities to install sprinklers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lucy Ellender 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 38



 

Fire Services Management 
Committee 

10 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. 

Cllr Hammond highlighted the upcoming Fire Conference in 

Cardiff from 11-12 March 2014 as well as the leadership academy 

course from 12-13 February. She asked if more fire chairs could 

attend the remembrance service. 

 

Action 

Officers to circulate Cllr Phil Howson’s motion on sprinklers 

 

Decision 

Members noted the update report.  

 

Notes of the last meeting 

 

The Board noted the minutes of the meeting on 14 November 

2013 and the Fire Commission minutes on 6 December 2013. 

 
 
Date of Next Meeting:    

 

2pm, Monday, 10 March 2014, Cardiff Town Hall 

 

 

 

 

 

Dan Kalley 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 39



Map of Cardiff

Page 40


	Agenda
	1 Chairman's report
	2 Flooding
	Item 2 - Appendix A letter to Peter Holland

	3 Review of property conditions in the private rented sector
	4 Pensions update
	5 Industrial Relations
	6 LGA Annual Fire Conference and Exhibition 2014 and 2015
	7 Update Paper
	8 Notes from the Previous meeting
	Map

